
 

THE CITY OF MONROE IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND SERVICE PROVIDER 

 

1. OPENING   
 

1.1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Roll Call 
 

2. PUBLIC ITEMS and COMMENTS (please limit your comments to less than 3 minutes): 
 

2.1. NOTE: The public comment period is designed to gain input from the public. Public comment is not 
intended to be a dialogue between the council, staff and any person making a comment. Any person 
who raises a question during public comment should rest assured that the City staff is making a note 
of your question and the council and staff will work together to identify the appropriate city official to 
follow up with you directly. 

 

3. STAFF REPORTS, UPDATES, and PRESENTATIONS 

 
3.1. Benton County Sheriff’s Office Report (Sheriff Van Arsdall) 
3.2. City Administrator Report (CA Martinenko)     

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately. If any item involves a potential 
conflict of interest, Council members should so note before adoption of the Consent Agenda. A motion to 
accept the consent agenda is appropriate.   
 

4.1. Approval of Bills, Financials and Minutes      
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

5.1. Ordinance 2023-04: First Reading- an ordinance to amend Title VII of the Monroe 
Municipal Code for parking regulations within the City of Monroe (Tabled from 11-
27-23 Council Meeting) (CA Martinenko) 

5.2. Resolution 2023-28: A Resolution in Support of Establishing a Continuum of 
Care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties Region and Registering with the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development in 2024 (CA 
Martinenko) 

5.3. Motion to accept rate increase for city waste services 
5.4. Establishing a Revenue and Finance Title in the Monroe Municipal Code (CA 

Martinenko) 
5.5. Review of Utility Billing Process (CA Martinenko) 
5.6. Direction to Staff regarding City Hall structure (CA Martinenko) 
5.7. Direction to Staff regarding IGA for Library (CA Martinenko) 
5.8. Request to install “prism” art inside library (CA Martinenko) 
5.9. Review new committee members and set up committee meetings (Mayor Sheets) 

  CITY COUNCIL NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

  Wednesday, December 27, 2023 at 6:00 P.M.  
  MONROE COMMUNITY CENTER, 605 MAIN ST., MONROE, OR 97456 



 

THE CITY OF MONROE IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND SERVICE PROVIDER 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
 

6.1. Belchamber Property Sale (CA Martinenko) 
6.2. UGB Land Exchange (CA Martinenko) 
6.3. Supplemental Budget (CA Martinenko) 

 

7. CITY EVENTS & OTHER HAPPENINGS 
 

7.1. City Events Calendar: https://ci.monroe.or.us/administration/city-calendar/ 
7.2. Upcoming 2024 City Events (Mayor Sheets) 

- May 18, 2024: Monroe BBQ & Logging Festival (10 a.m.-6 p.m.) 
 

OTHER BUSINESS  
 

7.3.  Committee Reports from Each Committee Chair:  
- Economic Development:  Economic Development Plan update 
- Parks: Parks Master Plan update 
- Public Works: Work plan for 2024 
- Attend the Monthly City Council Work Session – January 8, 2024 at 6 p.m. 

7.4.  Councilors’ Comments: 
- Council President Cuthbertson 
- Councilor Lindner 
- Councilor Myers 
- Councilor Ritch 
- Councilor Williams 
- Councilor Winther 

7.5.  Mayor’s Comments:  
- Watch for City Committee Meetings on the City’s Website (ci.monroe.or.us) 

 

8. ADJOURN 
 

8.1. Don’t forget to Shop Local at any of our Monroe Community Businesses! 
8.2. The following resources are available to locate businesses in our community: 

- Business Association of Monroe’s Member Business Directory: 
https://businessassociationofmonroe.org/members 

8.3. Next City Council Meeting is Monday, January 22, 2024 at 6 p.m. at the MCC. 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION 
Zoom Link: https://zoom.us/join 
Meeting ID: 820 7259 5766 

Passcode: 083396 

about:blank
about:blank


 

Page 1 of 6 
 

MONROE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

November 27, 2023  6:00 PM  Monroe Community Center 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Sheets called the City Council meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 
 
Roll Call: Present: Mayor Sheets; Councilors: Cuthbertson, Lindner, Myers, Ritch, Williams, Winther 
Staff present: City Administrator Martinenko 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None. 

STAFF REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS:  

3.1. Sheriff’s Report. The Sheriff’s department was not available for a report due to law 
enforcement activity in Corvallis. 
 

3.2. Presentation: Lori O’Hare updated Council on the Halloween event held on her 
property and utilizing a City easement. It was reported the event went well with no 
complaints from neighbors. Lori explained there was little advertising but had about 
150 people that were guided through the event. She intends on holding the occasion 
next Halloween with more publicity. 

 

3.3. Presentation: Mr. Ken Larson of Republic Services explained rate increases for Monroe 
waste services in 2024. Mr. Larsen reported the rate increase for Monroe will be 0.9% 
in the coming year. Councilor Lindner asked about different services including recycling. 
Mr. Larson explained that Oregon is changing its recycling laws in 2025 and would be 
happy to come back to Council and provide more information along with numbers for 
expanded services. Councilor Ritch asked about the Franchise agreement that is quite 
old, going back to Corvallis Disposal. Mr. Larson said that is something we could look at 
to update the agreement.  
 

3.4. City Administrator Report.  CA Martinenko CA Martinenko reported that the City did 
not have to produce water over the four-day holiday. CA Martinenko mentioned that 
he and Chuck Scholz from Harrisburg met with the State regulators at the water plant 
just before Thanksgiving. That discussion was about additional reporting requirements 
for membrane testing and also progress on the water plant upgrades were coming 
along. CA Martinenko then mentioned the Auditing firm is merging with another 
company. Councilor Ritch asked about the disclosure forms because he had not 
received his. CA Martinenko said that he would check.  
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
4.1. Council CA Martinenko mentioned that the City purchased a 2023 Ford F250 super duty 

service truck. The approved budget was $48,000 and the truck came in at $42,198, with 



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

the remaining to be used racks and tool storage. After general discussion, Councilor 
Ritch moved to approve the consent agenda and Councilor Myers seconded. With no 
further discussion, Mayor Sheets called for a vote: Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; Lindner: 
Yes; Myers: Yes; Ritch: Yes; Williams: Yes; Winther: Yes. Motion carried. 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

5.1. Ordinance 2023-04 – First Reading: Amending Title VII Chapter 72 Parking Regulations 

in the Monroe Municipal Code. CA Martinenko explained that because parking 

regulations are already codified, any changes would have to be by ordinance, rather 

than by resolution as discussed in the previous work session. CA Martinenko went on to 

read the key elements of the proposed ordinance such parallel parking unless 

otherwise marked on the pavement or with signage. CA Martinenko also said that the 

City adopted the State traffic codes, including parking, so much of the ordinance deals 

with changes to the State code that is more specific to Monroe. The proposed 

ordinance also consolidates other sections of Title VII such as storage. CA Martinenko 

concluded that because an ordinance was not discussed as being brought to Council as 

a first reading, the Council might consider tabling the discussion so it could be further 

deliberated at a work session or in committee. After general discussion, Councilor 

Winther suggested the ordinance should go to the ordinance committee for further 

review. The Council was in general consensus and Councilor Winther then moved to 

table the discussion and move it to the Ordinance Committee. Councilor Ritch 

seconded. Mayor Sheets called for a vote: Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; Lindner: Yes; 

Myers: Yes; Ritch: Yes; Williams: Yes; Winther: Yes. Motion carried. 

 

5.2. Council Direction to Staff regarding Water Plan Upgrades. CA Martinenko reviewed 

the revised scope of Work produced by Civil West for the water plant revisions. 

Specifically, Civil West presented a second option for replacing the membrane system 

with a conventional system since the cost would be almost the same as the upgrades to 

the existing plant already discussed. CA Martinenko said that a conventional system 

takes a lower grade water operator to run and would be more sustainable for Monroe 

in the long term. CA Martinenko reiterated past discussions that mentioned our water 

plant is complex and expensive to maintain. As an example, the system is computer 

driven and if the computers fail, it would not be possible to produce water manually. In 

addition, a conventional system still uses computers but they are more for managing 

processes rather than integral to running the plant. CA Martinenko said that in theory, 

the existing plant should not require a lot of staff to run but the staff need to be at a 

higher level of expertise to manage the technology. And that expertise is in demand at 

larger cities that can pay more than Monroe, which might mean an operator that gets 

trained Monroe, moves on to a better paying job elsewhere. Last CA Martinenko 

commented that Conventional Water Systems are the most prevalent and it would be 



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

easier for Monroe to get help if needed. After brief discussion, Councilor Ritch asked 

about removal of the drop structure on the quality of water. CA Martinenko said that 

water quality at Monroe is really determined by Fern Ridge Dam and while the 

aesthetics of the river will improve, most other water parameters will stay the same. 

Councilor Ritch then asked if the proposed system would be able to scale with 

population growth. CA Martinenko said population would be part of the design criteria 

but in any event, the plant could be added onto if that were needed in the future. The 

City has enough land at the park area to accommodate more filter units and clear well 

capacity. Councilor Myers then asked about the wells. CA Martinenko said that each 

well has minerals including iron and manganese along with compounds such as 

chlorides that would require additional treatment to remove and would be expensive 

to treat. Councilor Ritch asked about the water intake and how this might be 

coordinated with the Corp of Engineers dam removal project. CA Martinenko said that 

the existing water intake could be used but a design such as that proposed for the new 

water intake should the dam be removed is the best solution. CA Martinenko said he 

would talk to the Long Tom watershed Council on how this might be implemented 

sooner. After general discussion, Mayor Sheets asked for a motion. Councilor Ritch 

made a motion to move in the direction of a conventional water system Councilor 

Lindner seconded. Mayor sheets asked if there were further questions before voting. 

Councilor Winther said he did not know enough about this to make an informed 

decision and Councilor Williams commented she would like to know more about what a 

membrane system entails, specifically the longevity of the system. CA Martinenko said 

the membranes last 5-7 years and cost $40,000 per unit to replace, or $80,000 for the 

system. Councilor Myers added that sand filters are used in a lot of places for both 

cities and industry. Councilor Cuthbertson asked about the timeframe to move forward. 

CA Martinenko said that it was urgent to decide so the project could move forward 

within the time limits set for the money we received from the State, which is June 30, 

2025. Councilor Cuthbertson then asked if a side-by-side comparison could be made. 

CA Martinenko said that either system is comparable from an engineering viewpoint 

but mostly the conventional system is easier and less costly to staff, and more 

sustainable for a small town like Monroe. Mayor Sheets reminded the Council there 

was a motion and a second on the table. Councilor Winther ask CA Martinenko about 

his opinion of either system. CA Martinenko said they each have pluses and minuses 

but a conventional system is the most sustainable for Monroe given that it will be 

difficult to find qualified people to run a complex system without outsourcing. With no 

additional discussion, Mayor Sheets called for a vote: Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; 

Lindner: Yes; Myers: Yes; Ritch: Yes; Williams: Yes; Winther: Yes. Motion carried. 

 

5.3. Council Direction to Staff regarding sale of Belchamber property to Habitat for 

Humanity. CA Martinenko said he was approached by Habitat for Humanity in regard to 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

purchasing the Belchamber property, specifically the 1-acre parcel with the structure 

on it, for housing. CA Martinenko said the ordinance states that if the property is 

substandard or undeveloped, the Council could direct staff to negotiate the sale of the 

property without having to go through a bidding process. CA Martinenko then 

explained the land itself is outside the City Urban Growth Boundary and is zoned 

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU), which would be the County provides a variance or allow it to 

be rezoned. Councilor Lindner asked if the price was still $80,000 and CA Martinenko 

said yes and they would be willing to consider $90,000 since that is the current 

assessed value. CA Martinenko said he was not asking the Council for a decision only 

direction at this point to continue negotiating. Any decision would have to be by 

resolution to amend the previous Council resolution. 

 

5.4. Council Direction to Staff regarding starting an Urban Growth Boundary Exchange 
Process. CA Martinenko reviewed previous discussion regarding exchanging land in the 
NE part of Monroe, known as the “brickyard” with an equal amount of land in the SW 
part of Monroe, currently in Benton County. CA Martinenko said this is a complex 
process involving county planning, the County Commissioners, and public hearings. In 
the end, the result would be changing the City’s Urban Growth Boundary, loosing land 
in the NE that has proven expensive to develop and gaining land in the SW that is more 
developable, has access to City infrastructure, and would help mitigate potential issues 
with ground water. Councilor Ritch asked if discussions have been made with both land 
owners. CA Martinenko said discussion would begin once a formal land action was 
made with all parties, including the County, and commented that one party was 
currently online listening to the Council session. CA Martinenko then said that Council 
was not deciding the issue of a land exchange other than to allow staff to proceed with 
the process. After general discussion, Mayor Sheets called for a vote to allow staff to 
start the Land exchange process:  Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; Lindner: Yes; Myers: Yes; 
Ritch: Yes; Williams: Yes; Winther: Yes. 
 

5.5. Staff request to approve use of a third-party service for City liens. CA Martinenko 
discussed entering into an agreement with a third-party lien service called “Conduits” 
that lists and tracks city liens. This service would allow title companies and others to 
search for liens without staff having to spend their time gathering the information. It 
also would allow better tracking of other debts to the City such as ordinance 
abatement. The service allows the City to set the fee and the service charges a flat fee 
for each search. The difference is sent back to the City. CA Martinenko said many cities 
use this service, including Harrisburg and Junction City. After brief discussion, Councilor 
Myers moved to use a third-party service to track liens and Councilor Ritch seconded. 
Mayor Sheets called for a vote:  Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; Lindner: Yes; Myers: Yes; 
Ritch: Yes; Williams: Yes; Winther: Yes. Motion carried. 
 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

5.6. Updated Salary Scales and COLA increases. CA Martinenko and Councilor Lindner 
presented a request to provide a 5% COLA increase for staff retroactive to July 1, 2023. 
Councilor Lindner suggested that this is a minimum amount and might be revisited 
when inflation numbers come out early in 2024. CA Martinenko continued that while 
Councilor Lindner provided salary studies for staff including the City Administrator, the 
City is in flux while the water plant is being reengineered, so it might be advantageous 
to delay evaluating the positions and salary scales until early 2024.  After general 
discussion, Mayor Sheets called for a motion to recommend a 5% COLA increase. 
Councilor Lindner moved to grant staff a 5% COLA increase retroactive to July 1, 2023, 
and also reevaluate all staff salaries including the City Administrator, along with any 
additional COLA, early in the next year. Councilor Ritch seconded. Mayor Sheets called 
for a vote:  Councilor Cuthbertson: Yes; Lindner: Yes; Myers: Yes; Ritch: Yes; Williams: 
Yes; Winther: Yes. Motion carried. 

 

5.7. Review of Committee Members and Committee dates. CA Martinenko reviewed with 
Council the dates established by resolution for the Economic Development, Public 
Works, and Parks & Recreation advisory committees. CA Martinenko said the meetings 
are quarterly and do not have to be in the same month. Also, each committee can 
agree to meet more often or have sub-committees for special projects if needed. There 
was general discussion regarding staff attendance and CA Martinenko said that he 
would provide comp time for meeting that staff attend. 

 

5.8. December Council Meetings. After discussion, Mayor Sheets set December 11th for the 
Work Session and December 27th for the December Council meeting. 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
7.1. Supplemental Budget. CA Martinenko updated Council on a supplemental budget to 

create two new funds that separate streets and storm water from public works. CA 

Martinenko expects the Supplemental budget in the January 2024 timeframe. 

 

7.2. Updates: 

7.2.1. Planning Activities. CA Martinenko reported that a conditional use permit will be 

going to the Planning Commission on December 4th to allow retail/commercial 

activity at 555 depot Street where the old fertilizer building is located. In addition, 

planning review is in the works for a multi-family unit on Kelly Street. 

 

8. CITY EVENTS 

8.1. Mayor Sheets briefly discussed December events that include a townhall visit by State 

Senator Dick Anderson, the Toy Drive, the Monroe Light Parade, and the Monroe 

Holiday Lights contest. 

 



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

9. OTHER BUSINESS: None. 
 

 

10. ADJOURN:  Mayor Sheets adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m. 
 

 
Approved by Council Action on December 27, 2023 
 
 
 
Mayor Dan Sheets     ___________   Date: 
   
 
 
Attest: _______________________ 
Steve Martinenko, City Recorder 













































 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2023-04 
FIRST READING 

 

Amending Title VII Chapter 72 Parking Regulations in the  
Monroe Municipal Code 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Monroe Municipal Code, Title VII, Chapter 70, designates the City of Monroe City 
Council as the local traffic authority for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Monroe City Council discussed during an open, public committee meeting on 
December 5, 2023, and again during Council Work Session on December 11, 2023, amending the existing 
Parking Ordinance in Chapter 72 of the Traffic Code to clarify and expand the rules and regulations 
pertaining to parking within City Limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that for the safety and welfare of the community that 
parking regulations should better prescribe the place and manner for parking within city limits except as 
otherwise permitted by ordinance;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF MONROE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Monroe Municipal Code Chapter 71, sections 71.02(A), 71.03; and all of Chapter 72 

is replaced by the code in ATTACHMENT "A." 
Section 2. This Ordinance becomes effective upon passage by the Council. 
 

Adopted by the City Council this 22nd day of January, 2024. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Dan Sheets, Mayor     Date 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Steve Martinenko, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 1 of 7 

 
72.01 Purpose. 

.02 Generally. 

.05 Prohibited Parking or Stopping of a Vehicle. 

.10 Prohibited in Specified Places. 

.15 Prohibited Practices. 

.20 Storing Property on Street Prohibited. 

.25 Use of Loading Zones. 

.30 Parking Citations and Owner Responsibility. 

.35 Exemptions. 

.99 Penalties 
 
72.01 Purpose. 
 
This Chapter describes the regulation of parking on City of Monroe owned or operated property, 
including but not limited to surface parking lots, parking structures and designated parking areas; and 
public rights-of-way, including but not limited to streets, designated parking areas, planting strips, and 
sidewalks. 
 
72.02 Generally. 
 
Persons parking a motor vehicle in the City of Monroe must comply with the following rules in addition 
to any rules mandated by a parking zone, permit, or district, unless specifically directed otherwise by 
this Title, a traffic control device or an authorized officer. 

1. Emergency vehicles may stop or park in any manner necessary at any time while serving an 
emergency. 

2. No person may park or stop a vehicle other than in the direction of traffic. 
3. Head-in or angle parking is not lawful on a street unless designated by signage or parking space 

markings. 
4. When parking spaces are designated on a street with parking space markings, the vehicle must 

be parked in such a manner that the entire vehicle is located within official parking space 
markings. 

5. When parking spaces are not designated on a street with parking space markings and when 
angle parking is not lawful, the vehicle must be parked in such a manner that both the front and 
rear tires closest to the curb or curb line are located not more than 18 inches from the curb or 
curb line. 

a. A two or three wheeled vehicle may park at an angle or perpendicular to traffic flow if 
its tire closest to the curb or curb line is located not more than one foot from the curb 
or curb line and the vehicle does not extend more than eight feet from the curb or curb 
line. 

6. The operator who first begins maneuvering a motor vehicle into a vacant parking space on a 
street or public lot has priority to park in that space, and no other vehicle operator or person 
may attempt to interfere. 

7. When the operator of a vehicle discovers the vehicle is parked adjacent to a building to which 
the fire department has been summoned, the operator must immediately remove the vehicle 
from the area unless directed otherwise by law enforcement or fire officers. 
 

 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 2 of 7 

72.05 Prohibited Parking or Stopping of a Vehicle. 
 
Except when specifically directed by authority of this Title or when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic, it is unlawful to park or stop a motor vehicle: 

1. In violation of the state’s Vehicle Code or in violation of a parking limit sign; 
2. So as to prevent the free passage of other vehicles, including bicycles, on any street, alley or City 

of Monroe owned or operated property. 
3. Adjacent to a curb painted or taped yellow if the paint or tape is authorized by the City Council. 
4. When the vehicle is: a motor truck, a truck trailer, a motor bus, a recreational vehicle, a utility 

trailer, a drop box or storage container, or has two or more rear axles in the public right-of-way 
adjacent to or directly across from residential, public park, church, or school property, except: 

a. When loading/unloading property belonging to the occupants of or performing a service 
on the adjacent residence, for a period not to exceed 8 hours; or 

b. Recreation vehicle when servicing or loading/unloading the vehicle for a period not to 
exceed 8 hours. 

5. Without doing all of the following if leaving the vehicle unattended: 
a. Stopping the engine; 
b. Turning the front wheels to the curb or side of the street when standing upon any 

grade;  
c. Locking the ignition; 
d. Removing the key from the ignition; and 
e. Effectively setting the brake on the vehicle. 

6. In the public right-of-way, public park, or city-owned or operated property if the vehicle is 
abandoned. 

7. In a manner that creates a traffic hazard impeding the safe movement of vehicular or pedestrian 
traffic. 

 
72.10 Prohibited in Specified Places. 
 
Except when specifically directed by authority of this Title or when necessary to avoid conflict with other 
traffic, it is unlawful to park or stop a motor vehicle in any of the following places: 

1. Within 50 feet of an intersection when: 
a. The vehicle or a view obstructing attachment to the vehicle is more than 6 feet in 

height; or 
b. Vehicle design, modification, or load obscures the visibility or view of approaching 

traffic, any traffic control sign, any traffic control signal, or any pedestrian in a 
crosswalk. 

2. Within 15 feet of a driveway to any fire station unless allowed by official signs or markings. 
3. Within 10 feet of any fire hydrant, even when not marked by traffic control devices. 
4. In front of any portion of a handicap access ramp. 
5. In front of and 10 feet on either side of a rural (vehicle) delivery mail box between 8 a.m. and 6 

p.m., except official postal holidays. 
6. Within any city park except in officially designated parking areas during the time the park is 

open to the public.  This provision does not apply to City or City-authorized vehicles used in park 
service, or to vehicles authorized by a written permit from the City Council or designee. 

7. On any planting strip, sidewalk, or pedestrian way. 
8. On City-owned or City-operated property designated for vehicle parking by authorized City 

personnel only, without consent of the City, if there is in plain view on such property a sign 
prohibiting or restricting public parking. 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 3 of 7 

9. Over, upon, or in such manner as to prevent access to any water meter, gate valve, or other 
appliance in use on any water meter connection of the City of Monroe, located on public 
property, the public right-of-way or private property. 

10. On or within an intersection. 
11. On or within a crosswalk. 
12. In the area between roadways of a divided street or highway. 
13. On or within a bicycle lane, path, or trail. 
14. In front of any portion of a driveway ingress/egress to the public right-of-way. 
15. In an alley, except for a stop of not more than 15 consecutive minutes for loading or unloading 

persons or materials. 
16. A motor truck on a street in a residential zone between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

 
72.15 Prohibited Practices. 
 
No person may park or permit to be parked a motor vehicle on a street or other public property for the 
principal purpose of: 
 

1. Displaying the vehicle for sale; 
2. Repairing or servicing the vehicle, except while making repairs necessitated by an emergency for 

a period not to exceed 8 hours, or as allowed for recreational vehicles in 72.05(4); 
3. Displaying advertising from the vehicle; or 
4. Selling merchandise from the vehicle, except when authorized by permit or City Code.   

 
72.20 Storing Property on Street Prohibited. 
 

1. No person may store, or permit to be stored, a motor vehicle, recreational vehicle, or other 
personal property on public right-of-way or other public property in excess of 72 hours without 
making an application with the City and approved by the City Council or designee.  

2. Notwithstanding section 1 above, vehicles described in 72.05(4) are subject to the limitations 
established in those sections. 

 
72.25 Use of Loading Zone. 
 

1. No person shall park a vehicle in a place designated as a loading zone when the hours applicable 
to that loading zone are in effect for any purpose other than loading or unloading persons or 
material. Such a stop shall not exceed the time limits posted. If no time limits are posted, use of 
the zone shall not exceed 30 minutes. 

 
72.30 Parking Citations and Owner Responsibility. 
 

1. Citation on illegally parked motor vehicle. When a vehicle without an operator is found parked 
in violation of a restriction imposed by this title or state law, the officer finding the vehicle shall 
note the license number and any other information displayed on the vehicle that may identify 
the owner and shall attach a parking citation to the vehicle. The citation shall instruct the  
operator to answer to the charge at the next regularly scheduled municipal court session or pay 
the penalty imposed prior to that time at the City Hall during posted business hours. 

2. Failure to comply with parking citation. If the operator does not respond to a parking citation 
attached to the motor vehicle by the end of the court session listed on the citation, the City 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 4 of 7 

Administrator shall send a letter to the owner of the vehicle informing the owner of the 
violation and giving notice that if the citation is disregarded for a period of 30 days: 

a. The fine will be doubled; and 
b. If the vehicle has three or more outstanding citations or $500 or more in unpaid fines, it 

may be impounded, and an impounded vehicle shall not be released until all 
outstanding fines and charges are paid. 

3. Owner responsibility. The owner of a motor vehicle that is in violation of a parking restriction 
shall be responsible for the offense unless the operator used the vehicle without the owner’s 
consent. 

4. Registered owner presumption. In a proceeding charging violation of a parking restriction 
against a vehicle owner, proof that the vehicle was registered to the defendant at the time of 
the violation constitutes a presumption that the defendant was the owner. 

 
72.35 Exemptions. 
 

1. The driver of an authorized emergency vehicle, when responding to an emergency call or when 
in pursuit of an actual or suspected violator of the law or when responding to, but not returning 
from, a fire alarm, may park irrespective of the provisions of this chapter. 

2. The driver of a postal vehicle when engaged in the transport or delivery of mail may park 
irrespective of the provisions of this chapter. 

3. The provisions of this title that regulate the parking of vehicles do not apply to any vehicle being 
used for public works or utility maintenance, construction, repair work, or waste collection. 

4. This section shall not relieve drivers exempt by this section from the duty to park with regard for 
the safety of all persons or damage to property. 

 
72.90 Definitions 
 
.01 Crosswalk 
 
.03 Curb 
Any raised margin defining the space in the street devoted to vehicular traffic. 
 
.05 Curb Line 
The curb line separates a street or highway into the area dedicated to motor vehicle traffic (roadway) 
and the area dedicated to pedestrian and nonmotor vehicle traffic (planting strip, sidewalk, etc.). 
 
.07 Emergency Vehicles 
Motor vehicles of the Monroe Rural Fire District, police vehicles, emergency vehicles of municipal 
departments, and ambulances while being used for emergency purposes and displaying lights as 
required by the Oregon Revised Statutes. 
 
.09 Fire Station 
Any building used for the purpose of housing fire apparatus within the City. 
 
.11 Handicap Access Ramp 
An inclination, ramp-like structure, or any other such device designed to serve and provide ease of 
access from the sidewalk to the roadway or from the street to adjacent property for individuals using a 
mobility aid. If winged, it includes the winged area of the structure. 
 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 5 of 7 

.13 Intersection 
 
.15 Load/Unload 
To load or unload a vehicle means to be actively engaged in removing merchandise from or putting 
merchandise in a vehicle. 
 
.17 Motor Truck 
Any vehicle designed, used or maintained primarily for the transportation of property, goods or 
providing a service, excluding passenger vehicles. 
 
.21 Operator 
Any person who is in actual physical control of a vehicle. 
 
.23 Park, Parking, or Parked 
The standing of a vehicle, whether occupied or not, otherwise than temporarily for the purpose of and 
while actually engaged in loading or unloading property or passengers, or in obedience to traffic 
regulations, signs, signals, or officers. 
 
.25 Passenger Vehicle 
A car, pick-up, van, SUV or other vehicle, designed and used to transport people, with a combined 
weight of 8,000 pounds or less as classified by the Oregon Department of Motor Vehicles. 
 
.27 Pedestrian 
 
.29 Postal Vehicle 
A government or privately owned vehicle used in postal service as defined by U.S.C. Title 39, intended 
for the transportation or delivery of mail. 
 
.31 Planting Strip 
The area between the curb or edge of the roadway and an improved sidewalk. 
 
.33 Recreational Vehicle 
A vehicle which is designed for sport or recreational use, or which is designed for human occupancy on 
an intermittent basis.  Recreational vehicle is divided into two categories as follows: 

1. Motor Home.  A vehicle designed for human occupancy on an intermittent basis.  A camper is 

considered a motor home when it is mounted on a vehicle. 

2. Accessory Recreational Vehicle.  A nonmotor vehicle designed for human occupancy on an 

intermittent basis such as vacation trailers and fifth-wheel trailers.  A camper is considered an 

accessory recreational vehicle when it is not mounted on a vehicle.  Accessory  

recreational vehicle also includes vehicles designed for off-road use such as off-road vehicles, 

dune buggies, and recreational boats. 

.35 Repair (a vehicle) 
To perform work on the motor, mechanical, or body parts of a vehicle. 
 
.37 Right-of-Way 

1. The area between property lines of a street, easement, tract or other area dedicated to the 

movement of vehicles, pedestrians and/or goods. 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 6 of 7 

2. A public right-of-way is dedicated or deeded to the public for public use and under the control 

of a public agency. 

3. A private right-of-way is in private ownership, for use by the owner and those having express or 

implied permission from the owner, but not by others. 

.39 Roadway 
 
.41 Shoulder 
The portion of a public street or highway without curbs, whether paved or unpaved, contiguous to the 
roadway that is primarily for use by pedestrians, for the accommodation of stopped vehicles, for 
emergency use and for lateral support of base and surface courses. 
 
.43 Sidewalk 
The portion of the street between the curb or lateral lines of the roadway and the adjacent property 
lines, intended for use by pedestrians. An improved sidewalk is a pedestrian walkway with permanent 
surfacing in the sidewalk area of a street or highway. 
 
.45 Stop, Stopping, or Stopped 
 
.47 Street or Highway 
The entire width of a right-of-way when any portion thereof is intended for vehicle movement or vehicle 
access to abutting property. 
 
.49 Storage Container 
A Storage Container in which any material is temporarily stored or collected. For the purposes of Title 
70, a storage container will be considered a vehicle in terms of parking provisions and restrictions. 
 
.51 Traffic Hazard 
Any object, including vehicles, that impede the safe movement of vehicles in the public right-of-way or, 
on City of Monroe owned or operated property. 
 
.53 Traffic Lane 
An area of a street or highway, designated by official signs or markings, as dedicated to the movement 
of one vehicle at a time. 
 
.55 Truck Trailer 
A vehicle which is not a recreational vehicle or utility trailer, is more than 16 feet in length, and is 
designed to be pulled by a motor vehicle. 
 
.57 Uncontrolled Intersection 
Any intersection with no official traffic control device to designate vehicular right-of-way. 
 
.61 Utility Trailer 
A vehicle which is used to carry property, refuse, or special equipment, is 16 feet or less in length, a 
loaded weight of 8,000 pounds or less, and is designed to be pulled by a motor vehicle. Boat trailers are 
included as utility trailers no matter what their length. 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2023-04  
ATTACHMENT A 

 

Ordinance 2023-04 Attachment A  Page 7 of 7 

 
72.99 Penalties 
 

1. Any violation of this chapter is subject to citation or fine for each violation. 
2. Fines may be imposed for each day of violation. 
3. Parking Fines are to be established by Council Resolution and reviewed annually. 



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-28 

A Resolution in Support of Establishing a Continuum of Care for the Linn, 
Benton, and Lincoln Counties Region and Registering with the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development in 2024 
 

WHEREAS, homelessness is a critical issue in the tri-county region of Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties; 
in Oregon; and across the nation; and 

WHEREAS, children, families, veterans, and chronically homeless individuals experiencing mental illness 
and addictions comprise a large portion of the region's homeless population; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development created the Continuum of 
Care program in 1994 as a means for communities across the nation to "engage in multi-year strategic 
planning for homeless programs and services that are well integrated with planning for mainstream 
services"; mainstream services denoting public housing, Section 8 housing choice vouchers, and services 
for runaway and homeless youth, victims of domestic violence, veterans, seniors, and people 
experiencing addictions and/or mental illness; and 

WHEREAS, Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties are part of a "balance of state" Rural Oregon Continuum 
of Care; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Monroe carefully considered relevant factors and determined that the region 
could benefit from creating its own Continuum of Care, with enhanced service coordination, local 
autonomy, and alignment of goals to more effectively reduce homelessness in the region; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Monroe City Council supports establishing a 
Continuum of Care for the Linn, Benton, and Lincoln County region and supports the new Continuum of 
Care registering with the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development in 2024. 

Adopted by the City Council this 27th day of December, 2023. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Dan Sheets, Mayor     Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Steve Martinenko, City Recorder 


	City-Council-Agenda-December-27-2023
	CC Minutes 11-27-23
	Financials
	Ordinance 2023-04 Amending Parking
	Ordinance 2023-04 Amending Parking - ATTACHMENT A
	Resolution 2023-28 A Resolution.pdf

